

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION**

LCB File No. R170-07

November 26, 2007

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~[omitted material]~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1-3, NRS 386.540.

A REGULATION relating to charter schools; revising the definition of an “educational management organization”; revising the membership of the governing body of a charter school; requiring the governing body of a charter school to approve the appointment of certain personnel; revising certain reporting requirements of an educational management organization; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Section 1. NAC 386.033 is hereby amended to read as follows:

386.033 “Educational management organization” means a corporation, business, organization or other entity, whether or not conducted for profit, with whom *the governing body of* a charter school contracts to ~~[operate, manage or oversee the]~~ *assist with the operation, management or provision and implementation of* educational services and programs of the charter school. The term includes a corporation, business, organization or other entity that directly employs and provides ~~[the administrator or any of the educational personnel, or both, of]~~ *personnel to* a charter school.

Sec. 2. NAC 386.345 is hereby amended to read as follows:

386.345 1. A majority of the members of the governing body of a charter school must reside in the county in which the charter school is located.

2. The membership of the governing body of a charter school shall not include:

(a) An employee of the governing body or charter school, including, without limitation, an administrator or teacher; or

(b) ~~Any person who is a contractor of~~ *Any person who:*

(1) Owns, operates, is employed by or receives compensation from a corporation, business, organization or other entity that enters into a contract with the governing body or charter school ~~;~~; *or*

(2) Is related by blood or marriage to a person described in subparagraph (1).

3. If a person serves on the governing body of a charter school as a representative of a nonprofit organization or business, no other member of the governing body may also serve as a representative of that organization or business or otherwise represent the interests of that organization or business.

4. Not later than 5 business days after the governing body of a charter school is selected, the governing body shall submit to the Department:

(a) The name and address of each member;

(b) The resume of each member;

(c) The state of residence of each member;

(d) If a member serves on the governing body as a teacher, as that term is defined in subsection ~~4~~ 5 of NRS 386.549, a photocopy of his license to teach; and

(e) An affidavit of each member indicating that he:

(1) Has not been convicted of a felony or any offense involving moral turpitude; and

(2) Has read and understands material concerning the roles and responsibilities of members of governing bodies of charter schools and other material designed to assist the governing bodies of charter schools, if such material is provided to him by the Department,

↳ as required pursuant to NRS 386.549.

5. The governing body of a charter school governs the charter school, maintains overall control of the charter school and is responsible for the operation of the charter school, including, without limitation, critically evaluating the performance of a contractor for the charter school and selecting another contractor if the contractor is not performing his duties or services in a satisfactory manner.

6. Not later than 30 business days after each public meeting held by the governing body of a charter school pursuant to subsection ~~3~~ 4 of NRS 386.549, the governing body shall submit to the Department and to the sponsor of the charter school a copy of the minutes of the meeting. The minutes of each public meeting must be approved at the next meeting of the governing body and revised as necessary.

7. If the minutes of a meeting have not been approved by the governing body when it submits the minutes pursuant to subsection 6, the governing body shall:

(a) Submit a written statement, accompanying the minutes that are submitted pursuant to subsection 6, indicating that the minutes have not been approved and are subject to revision; and

(b) Submit to the Department and the sponsor of the charter school a copy of the approved minutes not later than 10 days after such approval.

Sec. 3. NAC 386.405 is hereby amended to read as follows:

386.405 1. The governing body of a charter school shall not enter into a contract with an educational management organization for a term of more than 2 years. Such a contract must allow the governing body to terminate the contract and must not prohibit the governing body from entering into a contract with another educational management organization. This subsection does not preclude a charter school from entering into another contract with the same educational

management organization after the expiration of a contract if the educational management organization has performed in a satisfactory manner.

2. The governing body of a charter school shall approve the appointment, or any change to the appointment, of all key personnel for the charter school who are directly employed and provided by an educational management organization. Such approval must occur at a regularly scheduled public meeting of the governing body. If the administrative head of a charter school is provided by an educational management organization, information regarding that person must be provided to the Department in accordance with NAC 386.100. For purposes of this subsection, “key personnel” include administrators who are employed pursuant to subsection 6 of NRS 386.590 and the person designated to draw all orders for the payment of money belonging to the charter school required by NRS 386.573.

3. If the governing body of a charter school enters into a contract with an educational management organization, the governing body shall, at least annually, review the performance of the educational management organization to determine whether the educational management organization is performing in a manner that satisfies the terms and conditions of the written charter, including, without limitation, the satisfaction of the goals of the charter school. If the educational management organization is not performing in a satisfactory manner, the governing body shall require the educational management organization to prepare, in consultation with the governing body, a plan of corrective action for the educational management organization. The plan must include the steps which will be taken by the educational management organization to ensure that it performs in a manner which satisfies the terms and conditions of the written charter, including, without limitation, the satisfaction of the goals of the charter school.

~~[3.]~~ 4. If a ~~[panel to supervise the academic probation of a school is appointed]~~ *support team is established* pursuant to NRS ~~[385.378]~~ *385.3721* to supervise the academic probation of a charter school, the ~~[panel]~~ *support team* may determine, as part of its ~~[final]~~ *annual* written report required by NRS ~~[385.381,]~~ *385.3742*, that the charter school terminate or not renew any contract entered into by the governing body of the charter school. The governing body shall comply with the recommendations of the ~~[panel.]~~ *support team*.

~~[4.]~~ 5. If the governing body of a charter school enters into a contract with an educational management organization, the governing body shall require the educational management organization to provide a written report to the sponsor of the charter school *and to the governing body of the charter school* not later than 15 business days after the end of each fiscal year during which the contract was in effect. The written report must include ~~[the:~~

~~—(a) Amount]:~~

(a) *The amount* of money received by the educational management organization from public and private sources to carry out the terms of the contract; ~~[and~~

~~—(b) Expenditures]~~ (b) *The expenditures* of the educational management organization relating to carrying out the contract, including, without limitation, the payment of salaries, benefits and bonuses ~~[; and~~

(c) *An identification of each contract, transaction and agreement entered into by the educational management organization related to carrying out the contract with the charter school, including, without limitation, contracts, transactions and agreements with parent organizations, subsidiaries and partnerships of the educational management organization.*

~~[5.]~~ 6. If an educational management organization is identified in the written charter of a charter school, the inclusion of a reference to that particular educational management

organization in the written charter does not preclude the governing body of the charter school from terminating or not renewing a contract entered into with that educational management organization. If the governing body terminates or does not renew such a contract, the governing body shall amend the written charter accordingly to remove any errant references to that educational management organization.